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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT WWW.KCSRCPAS.COM 

The Honorable Charles James, Mayor 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 

Town of Sunset, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Sunset, Louisiana 
(Town), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Town as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial 
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to 
be independent of the Town and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town's ability to continue as a going 
concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that 
may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted audinng standards and Government 
Audiung Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from enor, as ti-aud may invohe 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements 
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditmg standards and Government 
Auditing Standards. we: 

• Exercise professional judiunent and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining. on a test basis, el, idence regarding the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understandine of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made hy management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Town's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonahle period of time 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the plaimed scope and timing of the audit, signiticant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary 
comparison schedules, schedule of employer's share of net pension liability, and schedule of employer 
contributions on pages 46 - 52 be presented to supplement the basic tinancial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic tinancial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accountine Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information fbr consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic tinancial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during out audit of 
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufticient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
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The Town has omitted management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such missing information. although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required hy the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the hasic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our 
opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this omitted information. 

Supplementaty Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of torming opinions on the tinancial statements that 
collectively comprise the Town's hasic financial statements. The accompanying judicial system funding 
schedule is presented fbr purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic tinancial statements The 
information has been suhjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the judicial system funding schedule is fairly stated, 
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

C)ther Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have issued our report dated November 7, 
2024. on our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations. contracts. and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Town's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit peribrmed in accordance with Government Auditing Stwidards in considering the Town's internal 
control m er financial reporting and compliance. 

Kolder, Slaven & Company, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Ville Platte, Louisiana 
November 7, 2024 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE 

FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS (GWES) 
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TOWN OF SUNSET. LOUISIANA 

Statement of Net Position 
June 30. 2024 

ASSETS 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

   

Cash and interest-hearing deposits $ 2,419,600 $ 906.223 S 3.325.823 
Receivables, net 58.476 158,378 216,854 
Internal balances 481,179 (481,179) - 
Due from other governmental units 4.555 5.441,458 5,446,013 
Restricted assets. 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits 

 

425,312 425,312 
Capital assets. net 1.139.906 2,852.196 3.992.102 

Total assets 4.103,716 9,30", ,388 13,406,104 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

   

Deferred outflows related to pensions /66.9'0 10,340 277,260 

LIABILITIES 

   

Current liabilities: 

   

Accounts, salaries and other payables 107,992 32,126 140,118 
Customers deposits payable 

 

143,693 143.693 
Accrued interest payable 

 

3,368 3.368 
Long-term liabilities: 

   

Due within one year /1,000 40,)1/ 61./1) 
Due in more than one year 73.000 6,199,042 6.”1.04' 

Net pension liability 545,098 18 591 563,691 

Total liabilities 698.090 6.437,034 7.135.124 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

   

Deferred inflows related to pensions 62,620 6,553 69,173 

NET POSITION 

   

Net investment in capital assets 1,139,906 './39,/47 3,379,153 
Restricted for sales tax dedications 1,151,696 - 1.151.696 
Restricted for debt service 2.006 93,404 95,410 
Unrestricted 1,316,318 536,490 1,852,808 

Total net position S 3.609,926 S 2,809.141 S 0.479,067 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic tinancial statements. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30. 2024 

Program Revemles Net (Expenset Revenues and 

(iptrating Capital Changes in Net Position 
Fees. Fines. and Grants and Grants and Governmental Blisiness-Type 

Activities Expenses Charges foi Services Contributions contributions Activities Activities Total 
Govenunental activities: 

General government 
Public safety 

Poke 
Fire 

Sneets 
Interest on long-term debt 

Tota] govenunental activities 

Bnsmess-type activities-

 

Gas 

Water 
Sewei 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total business-type activities  

$ 882.548 S 21S; 650 $ - 

850.98 l 227.144 
270.143 
'65.853 

2.951 

2,272.476 440.794 

293.394 370,992 

473.096 563.685 
437.935 385.623 
21.798 

1, 7 '6.223 1.375 100  

S 300.000 $ (.3a,898) S $ (368.8981 

(623.8371 (623,8371 
(270.1431 
[265.853) (265.853) 

(2.951) 12.951) 

3I10.000 (1.531.682) (1,531,682) 

77,598 77.598 

48S.6S7 534,276 584.'76 
(52,3121 (52.312) 
4.21.798) (21.798) 

483.637 587,764 587,764 

3.49S.o99 S 1.766 (04 S 785.o57 

General revenues. 
Taxes - 

Property taxes. levied for general purposes 
Sales and use taxes. lex ied for general purposes 
Franchise taxes 

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific piogiams - 
Federal and state sources 
Non-employer pension contribution 

Interest and investment earnings 
Nliscellaneotis 

Toral general revenues and tratisfeis  

(1 51,61,2) 

169,996 
1.259,646 

16(1,673 

107,344 
11,690 

284 
107.436 

1.S17.069  

5s7,7o4 (941918i 

169.996 
1,259.646 

160.673 

107.344 

383 12.073 
109 393 

107.436 

492 1.817.561 

Total 

Change in net position '85,337 558,156 873.6-13 

Net position - heguming 3.314.539 ?.780,885 5,(05.424 

Net position - endmg $3,609.926 S 2.869.141 $6.479.067  

The accompanying notes are an integial part ot the l)asic tinimcial statements. 
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FUND DESCRIPTIONS 

MAJOR FUNDS 

General Fund  

The General Fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with governments which are not 
required tu be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Fund  

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
particular purposes. 

Sales Tax Fund - 
To account for the receipt and use of proceeds of the Town's two 1% sales and use taxes. These taxes are 
dedicated for the purpose of constructing and purchasing municipal, fire and police department facilities and 
furnishings and equipment: opening, construction, and improving drains, drainage canals, and subsurface 
drainage: constructing. acquiring. or improving any work of pubhc permanent improvements, and 
purchasing and acquiring all equipment and furnishings for public works, buildings, improvements, and 
facilities of the Town of Sunset. 

Economic Development District - 

To account for the receipt and use of proceeds of the Town's _1% sales and use tax. These taxes are 
deposited into a special trust fund named "Sunset Economic Development Distnct No. 1 Trust Fund. the 
purpose of which is to fund economic development projects, as defined in LA RS 33:9038.34(M) and LA 
RS 33.9038 36, located within the District, and also to pay the costs of infrastructure improvements outside 
the Distnct that benefit property in the District. 

Enterprise Fund 

Utility Fund  - 

To account for the provision of gas, water, sewerage and limited sanitation services to residents of the 
Town. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not 
limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt service. and billing and 
collection 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Balance Sheet 

Govei umental Funds 
June 30, 2024 

  

Sales Tax Ecnammic 

    

Special Development Other 

  

General Revenue District Governmental Total 
ASSETS 

     

Cash aud interest-bearing deposits S 1.477,564 $ 118.401 $ So2.796 S.20.839 S 2.419.600 
Receivables 

     

Taxes 39,051 

   

39n51 
Due limn other goveniniental aunts 4,555 - 

  

4.555 

Due from other fluids 563.891 ")30.499 

 

- 794.391 

Othei 19.425 - 

  

19.425 

Total assets S 2.104.487 $ 348.900 $ 802,796 S 20.839 s 3,277.022 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

     

Lrabrlrtres 

     

Accounts and other payables S 107,992 $ 

 

S - S 107.992 

Due to other funds 294,379 

  

1S.X33 313.212 

Total liabilities 402,3'1 

  

1S.833 421 204 

Fimd balances: 

     

Restricted for sales tax dedications 

 

;1S.900 81O.796 - 1.151.696 
Reshicted for debt service 

   

'.006 2.0tI6 

Unassigned 1.7o2.116 - 

 

- 1.702.116 

Total fund balances l.702.1l6 34S.900 si0,796 2 006 2.855 S1S 

Total liabilities and fund balances 2.1()4,4S7 $ 348.900 $ 2.796 T.20.839 S 3,777.0" 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Reconcihation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
to the Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2024 

Total fund halances for governmental funds at June 30, 2024 

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of net 
position is different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of: 

 

$2,855.818 

Land $ 258,190 

 

Buildings and improvements, net of $1,148,265 accumulated depreciation 656,206 

 

Machinery and equipment, net of $1,044.327 accumulated depreciation 35,497 

 

Vehicles, net of $306,785 accumulated depreciation 190,013 1,139.9(16 

Deferred outflows of resources are not available resources, and therefore, 
are not reported in the funds. 

Pension plans 

 

266,920 

Some liabilities are not due and payahle from current financial resources 
and are, therefore, not reported in the funds. These liabilities consist 
of the following: 

  

Revenue bonds payable (45,000) 

 

Net pension liability (545,098) (590,098) 

Deferred inflows of resources are not payable from current expendable 
resources, and therefore, are not reported in the funds: 

  

Pension plans 

 

(62.620) 

Total net position of governmental activities at June 30, 2024 

 

S S.609.926 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET. LOUISIANA 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balances-

 

Govei innental Funds 
Fin the Yew Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Geueral 

Sales Tax 
Special 

Revenue 

Economic 
Development 

District 

Other 
Go‘erninental Total 

Revenues: 

     

Taxes $ 330,669 $ 968,599 $ 291,0-17 $ - $ 1,590,315 

Licenses and penuits 213.650 

   

213.650 

Inteigovemmental 407.344 

   

407,344 

Fines and forfeits 227.144 

   

227,144 

Miscellanemis 107.512 13? 

 

76 107.720 

Total revenues 1.286.319 968 731 291.047 76 2 546.173 

Expenditures: 

     

Curreiit - 

     

General govei lament 822,9-17 9.558 7 887 

 

835.397 
Public safety - 

     

Police 748,648 

   

748.648 

File 262,737 

   

767.737 
Streets 255,630 

   

255.630 

Debt service 

     

Principal 8,498 

  

20.000 28,498 
Interest and tiscal charges 346 

  

2.605 2,951 

Capital outlay 119,864 

   

119.864 

Total expenditures 2,218,670 9.558 7,887 21_605 2.253.720 

Excess (deficiency) of le% enues 

ovel expenditures (932,351) 959.173 288,160 (22.529) 797.453 

Other financing smirces (uses): 

     

Transfers in (out) 1.081.877 1,106,033) 

 

23.156 

 

Net changes in fund balances 150.526 (146,860) 288,160 627 292,453 

Fund balances, beginning 1.551,590 495,760 514,636 1.379 2,563,365 

Fund balances, ending $1,702,116 $ 348,900 $ 802,796 $ 2.006 $ 2,855.818 

The accompanying notes ale an integt al part of the basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Ret enues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Fund.s 

to the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2024 

Total net changes in fund balances for the year ended June 30, 2024 per the 
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances $ 292,453 

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of activities is different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over 
their estimated useful hves and reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital outlay which are considered expenditures on the statement 
of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2024 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to 
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-tenn 
debt consumes the current tinancial resources of governmental funds. 
Neither transaction, however. has any effect on net position. Also 
governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and 
similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are 
amortized in the statement of activities over multiple periods. 

Repayrnent of long-term debt 

Sonic long-term liabilities are not recognized at the fund level because 
they do not represent a claim on current financial resources. Expenses 
at the government-wide level are recognized when these liabilities are 
incurred, while expenditures are reconized at the fund level when 
cash payments are made. The amounts below represent the difference 
between the expenses incurred at the eovernment-wide level and the 
current fmancial resources expended at the fund level. 

Net pension liability 

$ 120,164 
(128,634) (8,470) 

 

28.498 

 

 127,104) 
   

Total changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2024 per the 
statement of activities 285,387  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Net Position 
Proprietary Fund 

June 30, 2024 

Enterpnse 
Fund 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits 
Accounts receivable. net 

Due from other governments 

Total current assets 

$ 906223 

158.378 
5.441.458 

6,506.059 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted assets - 

Cash and interest-beann€ deposits 

Capital assets. net of acctunulated depreciation 

Total noncurrent assets 

425,312 

2.852.196 

3.277.508   

Total assets 9,783.567 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred outflows related to pensions 10.340 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 156 
Retainage payable 31.270 
Accrued liabilities 700 
Due to other fimds 481.179 
Loans payable 5.212 
Payable from restricted assets - 

Customer deposits payable 143.693 
Bonds payable 35.000 

Accrued interest payable 3.368 

Total current liabilities 700.578 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Bonds payable 

Net pension liability 

Total noncurrent habilities 

Total liabilities 

6,199,042 

18 593 

6.217.635 

6.918.1 13 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred inflows related to pensions 6,553  

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets ' 139.147 
Restricted for deht service 93.404 

Unrestricted 536.490  

Total net position $ 2.869.141  

The accompanying notes are 111 integral part of the basic financial statements 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Statement of- Revenues. Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position - 
Proprietary Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Enterprise 

Fund 

Operatine revenues: 
Charges for services 

 

Gas charges x 358,563 

Water charges 494,501 
Sewer service charges 288,577 

Miscellaneous 183.659 

Total operating revenues 1.3-'5.300 

Operating expenses: 

 

Gas department 293,394 

Water department 473.096 

Sewer department 437,935 

Total operating expenses 1.204,425 

Operating income 120,875 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses). 

 

Interest income 109 

Non-employer pension contribution 383 

Interest expense (21.798) 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (21.30(1) 

Loss before contributions 99.569 

Capital contributions 488,687 

Change in net position 588,256 

Net position, heOnnin2 2,280,885 

Net position. ending $2.869,141 

The accoinpanying notes are an integral part of the basic tinancial statements. 
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TOWN 0F SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

 

Enterprise 
Fund 

Cash flows from operating activities. 

 

Receipts tiom customers $ 1,285,593 
Payments to suppliers (842,383) 

Payments to employees (255,(23) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 187,587 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 

 

Cash received bv other funds 101.557 

Net increase in customer meter deposits 4.799 

Net cash provided by noncapital fmancing activities 106,35(i 

Cash flows fi-om capital and related financing activities: 

 

Proceeds from bonds payable, net 212,212 
Principal paid on loans payahle (30,560) 
Interest paid on bonds and notes (21.798) 
Proceeds from grants 488,687 

Net acquisition of property, plant and equipment (760.126) 

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (111,585) 

Cash flows from investing activities. 

Interest earned 109 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 182,467 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 1,121.590 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 1304.1157 

(continued) 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fund (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30. 2024 

Enterprise 

Fund 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided hy operating all% ities: 
Operating income $ 120,875 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Depreciation 132,808 
Pension expense 3,469 

Changes in current assets and liabilities: 
Increase in accounts receivable (39,707) 

Increase in accounts payable (29.858) 

Net cash provided by operating activities S 187.587  

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents per the statement 
of cash flows to the statement of net position: 

Cash and cash equivalents, heginning of period - 
Cash and interest-hearing deposits - unrestricted 

Cash and interest-hearing deposits - restricted 

Less: interest-bearing deposits with maturity in excess of 90 days 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents. end of period - 
Cash and interest-bearing deposits - unrestricted 
Cash and interest-hearing deposits - restricted 

Less: interest-bearing deposits with maturity in excess of 90 days 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

$ 767,022 

382,046 

(27,478) 

1.121.590 

906,223 
425,312 

(27,478) 

1.304,057    

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 182,467  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the hasic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying financial staternents of the Town of Sunset. Louisiana (Town) have been 
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. GAAP includes all relevant Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The accounting and reporting framework and the more 
significant accounting policies are discussed in subsequent subsections of this note. 

A. Financial Reportine Entity 

The Town of Sunset, Louisiana was incorporated in 1909 under the 
provisions of the Lawrason act The Town operates under the Mayor-Board of 
Aldermen form of governrnent. 

As the municipal go% erning authority, for reporting purposes, the Town of 
Sunset. Louisiana is considered a separate financial reporting entitv. The financial 
reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government (municipality). (b) 
organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, (c) other 
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the 
primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's 
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete, and (d) organizations that are 
closely related to, or financially integrated with the primary govemrnent. 

Section 2100 of the 2011 Ciovernmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Codification of Governmental Accomiting and Financial Reporting 
Standards. "Defining the Financial Reporting Entity'.  establishes criteria for 
deternnning which entities should he considered a cornponent unit and, as such. part 
of the reporting entity for financial reporting purposes. The basic criteria are as 
follows: 

1. Legal status of the potemial cornponent unit including the right to incur its 
own debt, levv its own taxes and charges, expropriate property' in its own 
narne, sue and be sued. and the right to buy. sell and lease property in its own 
narne. 

Whether the primary government's government authority (Mayor and 
Council) appoints a majority of board members of the potential component 
unit and is able to irnpose its will on the potential cornponent unit or whether 
the potential component unit is fiscally dependent on the primary 
government. 

3 Financial benefit: burden relationship between the primary Liovernment and 
the potential component unit. 

4. The nature and signiticance of the relationship between the potential 
component unit with the primary government are such that exclusion would 
cause the reporting entity's tinancial statements to be misleading. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

The Town of Sunset. Loinsiana is a primary government and has no 
component units. The accompanying financial statenients present information only 
on the funds maintained by the Town and do not present information on any other 
governmental unit 

B. Basis of Presentation 

Gm. ernment-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 

The government-wide financial statements provide operational accountability 
information for the Town as an economic unit. The government-wide financial 
statements report the Town's ability to niaintain service levels and continue to meet 
its obligations as they come due. The statements include all governmental activities 
and all business-type activities of the primary government. The Town has no 
fiduciary funds. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses 
and program revenues for each function of the Town's governmental and business-
type activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a 
program or function and therefore are clearly identifiable to a particular flinction. 
Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid hy the recipients of goods or 
services offered by the programs, and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted 
to meeting the operational or capital requirements or a particular program. Revenues 
that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as 
general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds, each of which 
is considered to be an independent fiscal and accounting entity The operations of 
each fund are accounted for within separate sets of self-balancinit accounts, which 
comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources. fund balance.net position, re% enues, and expenditures:expenses, and 
transfers. The nummum number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and 
managerial requirements. Fund financial statements report detailed information 
about the Town. The various funds of the Town are classified into two categories: 
governmental and proprietary. The emphasis on fund financial statements is on 
major funds, each displayed in a separate column. 

Major hinds are determined as funds whose revenues, expenditures:expenses, 
assets and deferred outflows of resources or liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources are at least ten percent of the corresponding totals for all funds of that 
category or type (total governmental or enterprise funds) and at least five percent of 
the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined or fimds 
designated as major at the discretion of the Town. The General Fund is always a 
major fund. Funds not classified as a major fund are aggregated and presented in a 
single column in the fund financial statements. The Town uses the folkiwing funds, 
grouped by fund type. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

ernmental Funds - 

Governmental Funds are those through which most governmental functions 
of the Town are financed. The acquisition, use. and balance of the Town's 
expendable tinancial resources and the related liabilities (except those accounted for 
in proprietary fimds) are accounted for through go‘emmental funds. 

General Fund 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town It is used to 
account frm all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of government 
grants or other specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to 
expenditures for specitied purposes other than debt service or capital projects of the 
Town. The following are the Town's major Special Revenue Funds: 

The Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of 
two one percent sales and use taxes that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
specific purposes. 

The Economic Development District Special Revenue Fund is used to 
account for the proceeds of a two percent sales and use tax that is legally restricted to 
expenditures for specific purposes. 

Debt Service Funds 

Debt Service Funds are used to account for and report resources that are 
restricted, conunitted, or assigned to expenditures for principal and interest. The 
Town has no major debt service funds. 

Governmental fund financial statements include a balance sheet and a 
statement of revenues. expenditures, and changes in fund balances for all major 
governmental funds and nonmajor funds aggregated. A reconciliation is presented to 
summarize the differences in fund halances of the governmental fund tinancial 
statements and the net position of the governmental activities in the eovernment-wide 
financial statements. 

Proprietary Funds — 

Proprietary funds are used to account for the Town's ongoing operations and 
activities which are similar to those often found in the private sector where the intent 
is that costs of providmg goods and services be reco‘ered through user charges. The 
proprietary fluid maintained by the Town is an enterprise fund. 



TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Enterprise Funds 

Enterprise funds are proprietary funds that are used to report activities for 
which a fee is charged to external users. These funds account for operations (a) that 
are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where 
the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses. including depreciation) of 
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis he financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges, or (b) where the governing hody has 
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and:or net 
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability, or other purposes. The Town's enterprise fund is the Utility Fund. 

Enterprise fund financial statements include a statement of net position, a 
statement of revenues. expenses and changes in fund net position, and a statement of 
cash tlows. The enterpnse ftmd financial information is presented under the 
business-type activities column. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accountirm arid Financial Statement Presentation 

The measurement focus determines the accounting and financial reporting 
treatment applied to a fund The governmental and business-type activities within the 
government—wide statement of net position and statement of activities are presented 
usine the economic resources measurement focus. The economic resources 
measurement focus rneets the accounting objectn es of determining net income, net 
position, and cash flows. 

The fund financial statements use either the current financial resources 
measurement focus, or the economic resources measurement focus as appropriate. 
Go‘ernmental funds use the current financial resources measurement focus. The 
measurement focus is based upon the receipt and disbursement of current available 
financial resources rather than upon net incorne. The measurement focus of the 
proprietary fund types, the flow of economic resources, is based upon determination 
of net income, net position and cash flows. 

The accrual hasis of accounting is used throughout the government-wide 
statements: conversely, the financial statements of the go% ernmental funds have been 
prepared in accordance with the modified accrual hasis of accountim. whereby 
revenues are recognized when considered both measurable and available to finance 
expenditures of the current period. For this purpose, the Town considers revenues to 
be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal 
period. An exception to this is grant revenue collected on a reimbursement hasis. 
Those reimbursable grants are recognized as revenue when reimbursable 
expenditures are made. The Town considers reimbursement amounts received within 
one year as available. The Town accrues intergovernmental revenue, ad valorem and 
sales tax revenue. franchise fees. charges for services, and investment income based 
upon this concept. Expenditures generally are recognized when the related fund 
liabilities are incurred and become payable in the current period. Proceeds of debt 
are reported as other financing sources, and principal and interest on long-term debt, 
as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, 
are recorded as expenditures when paid. 



TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Interest on im ested funds is recoptized when earned. Intergovernmental 
revenues that are reimbursement for specific purposes or projects are reco2nized in 
the penod in which the expenditures are recorded. All other revenue items are 
considered to be measurable and availahle only when cash is received by the Town. 
Transfers between governmental funds are recorded when the related liahility is 
incurred. These transfers do not represent revenues (expenditures) to the Town and 
are, therefore, reported as other financing sources (uses) in the 2overnmental ftind 
financial statements. 

Smce the fund level statements are presented using a different measurement 
focus and basis of accounting than the government-wide statements, a reconciliation 
is presented on the page following each fund level statetnent that summarizes the 
adjustments necessary to convert the fund level statements into the govenmient-wide 
presentations. As a general nile, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated 
frorn the govemment-wide financial statements. 

The financial statements of the enterprise funds have been prepared in 
accordance with the accrual basis of accounting. Accordin2ly, revenues are recorded 
when earned, and expenses and related liabilities are recorded when incurred. 

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Equity 

Cash, interest-bearing deposits, and investments 

For purposes of the statement of net position. cash and interest-bearing 
deposits include all cash on hand. demand accounts. savings accounts, and 
certificates of deposits of the Town. Under state law, the Town may deposit funds 
within a fiscal agent bank organized under the laws of the state of Louisiana, the laws 
of any other state in the union. or the laws of the United States of America. The 
Town may invest in certificates and time deposits of state banks organized under 
Louisiana laws and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana. 

For the purpose of the proprietary funds statement of cash flows, "cash and 
cash equivalents'.  include all demand and savings accounts. and certificates of 
deposit or short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less 
when purchased. 

Receivables 

Recen ables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. 
Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include ad valorem taxes 
and franchise taxes. Business-type activities report customers' utility service 
receivables as their major receivables. Uncollectible ad valorem taxes or utility 
service receivables are recognized as bad debts at the tirne information becomes 
mailable which would indicate the uncollecnbility of the particular receivable. The 
allowance for customers' utility receivables was S22,223 at June 30, 2024 Unbilled 
utility service receivables resulting from utility services rendered between the date of 
meter reading and billing and the end of the month, are recorded at year-end 



TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Interfund receivables and payables 

During the course of operations. numerous transactions occur between 
individual funds that may result in amounts owed hetween funds. nose related to 
goods and services type transactions are classified as "due to and from other funds." 
Short-term interfund loans are reported as "mterfund receivables and payables." 
Long-term interfund loans are reported as "advances to and from other funds." 
Interfund receivables and payables. advances to and from other funds. as well as due 
to and from other funds are eliminated in the statement of net position. 

Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets include cash and interest-bearing deposits of the proprietary 
fund that are legally restricted as to their use The restricted assets are related to the 
utility meter deposits and revenue bond accounts. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure 
assets. are reported in the apphcahle governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the government-wide or fund tinancial statements Capital assets are 
capitalized at historical cost or estimated cost if historical cost is not available. 
Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at acquisition value at the date of 
donation. The Town maintains a threshold level of $1.000 or more for capitahzing 
capital assets. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of 
the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Prior to July 1, 2001, 
governmental funds' infrastnicture assets were not capitalized. These assets have 
been valued at estimated historical cost. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated 
expense in the statement of activities. with accumulated depreciation reflected in the 
statement of net position. Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful 
Iives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful 
lives by type of asset is as follows: 

Buildings and improvements 5 - 20 years 
Machinery and equipment 3 - 15 years 
Vehicles 5 - 10 years 
Utility system and extensions 5 - 30 years 

In the fund financial statements. capital assets used in governmental fund 
operations are accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental funds 
upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted fim 
in the same manner as in the government-wide statements. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Long-term deht 

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets 
acquired or constructed with the proceeds of the debt are used in govenunental fund 
operations or proprietary fund operation, and whether they are reported in the 
government-wide or fund financial statements. 

All long-term debt to be repaid from governrnental and business-type 
resources is reported as liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term 
debt consists primarily of the rel, enue bonds payable, note payable. capital lease 
payable, note payable. and utility meter deposits payable. 

Long-term deht for governmental fund.s is not reported as liabilities in the 
fund financial statements. The debt proceeds are reported as other financine sources 
and payment of principal and interest reported as expenditures. The accounting for 
proprietary fund long-term debt is the same in the fund statements as it is in the 
government-wide statements. 

Pensions 

The net pension liahility. deferred outflows of resources, and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense (See Note 13), have 
been determined using the tlow of economic resources measurement focus and full 
accrual basis of accounting. Member's earnable compensation. for which the 
employer allocations are based, is recognized in the period in which the employee is 
compensated for services performed. For purposes of measuring the net pension 
liability. deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
plans, and additions todeductions from the plans' fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same hasis as they are reported hy the plans For this purpose, 
benefit payments (including refunds of emplo}ree contributions) are recognized when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Non-employer contributions 
are recognized as revenue in the govenunent-wide financial statements. In the 
governmental fund financial statements contributions are recognized as expenditures 
when made. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate section represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expenselexpenditure) until then. The Town 
has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, the deferred outflow of 
resources attributable to it; pension plans. 



TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

In addition to liabihties, the statement of net position will sometimes report a 
separate section for deterred inflows of resources. This separate section represents an 
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not he 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Town has one 
item that qualifies for reporting in this category, the deferred intlow of resources 
attributable to its pension. 

Equity Classifications 

In the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and 
displayed in three components: 

a. Net irn estment in capital assets consists of capital assets net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of 
any bonds. mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are 
attributahle to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets. 

h Restricted net position consists of net position with constraints 
placed on the use either by external groups. such as creditors, 
grantors, and contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments; or law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation At June 30, 2024, the Town reported $1,247,106 of 
restricted net position, $1.151,696 of which was restricted by 
enabling legislation. It is the Town's policy to use restricted net 
position prior to the use of unrestricted net position when both 
restricted and unrestricted net position are available for an expense 
which has been incurred. 

c Unrestricted net position consists of afl other assets, deferred 
outflows of resources. liahilities. and deferred inflows of resources 
that do not meet the detinition of "restricted" or "net investment in 
capital assets." 

In the fund statements, governmental fund equity is classified as fund 
balance. Fund balances for gm. ernmental funds are reported in classifications that 
comprise a hierarchy based primarily upon the extent to which the Town is bound to 
honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can he 
spent. The categories and their purposes are• 

a. Nonspendable includes fund balance amounts that caiuiot be spent 
either because they are not in spendable form or because of legal or 
contractual constraints requiring they remain intact. 

b. Restricted includes fund halance amounts that are constrained for 
specific purposes which are externally imposed hy providers, such as 
creditors. grantors. donors, or amoimts constrained due to 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or the laws or 
regulations of other governments. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

c. Committed mcludes fund balance amounts that can be used only for 
specific purposes that are internally imposed by the Town through 
formal legislative action of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen and 
does not lapse at year end. A comnutted fund halance constraint can 
only be established, modified, or rescinded by passage of an 
Ordinance (Law) hy the Mayor and Board of Aldermen. 

d. Assigned includes fund balance amounts that are constrained by the 
Town's intent to be used for specific purposes, that are neither 
restricted nor committed. The assignment of fund balance is 
authorized hy a directive from the Town Clerk and approval of a 
Resolution hy the Mayor and Board of Aldermen. 

e. tinassigned includes ftmd balance amounts which have not heen 
classified within the above-mentioned categories. 

It is the Town's pohcy to use restricted amounts first when both restricted 
and unrestricted fund balance is available unless prohibited by legal or contractual 
provisions Additionally, the Town uses committed, assigned, and lastly unassigned 
amounts of fund balance in that order when expenditures are made. 

Proprietary ffind equity is classified the same as in the government-wide 
statements. 

E. Revenues, Expenditures. and Expenses 

Revenues 

The Town considers revenue to be susceptihle to accrual in the governmental 
fttnds as it becomes measurable and available, as defined under the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. The Town generally defines the availability period for revenue 
recognition as received within sixty (60) days of year end. The Town's major 
re% enues sources that rneet this availability criterion are intergovernmental revenues, 
franchise fees, tax revenue, and charges for services. 

There are three classifications of programmatic revenues for the Town, 
program specific grant and contributions revenue (operating and capital) and charges 
for services. Grant rel, enues are rel, enues from federal, state. and pm ate grants. 
These revenues are recognized when all applicable eligibility requirements are inet 
and are reported as intergovernmental revenues. Charges for scrvices are revenues 
derived directly from the program itself or from parties outside the Town's taxpayers 
or citizenry, as a whole. Program revenues reduce the cost of the function to he 
financed frorn the Town's general revenues. The primary sources of program 
revenues are fees. fines. and charges paid by recipients of goods and services, grants 
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements 
of a particular program, and earned income in connection with the operation of the 
Town's utility system. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Interest income is recorded as earned in the fund hokhng the interest-beanng 
asset. 

Substantially all other revenues are recorded when received. 

Operanng Revenues and Expenses 

In the proprietary funds, operating re‘enues are those revenues produced as a 
result of providine services and producing and delivering good.s and. or services. 
Nonoperanng revenues are funds pnrnanly provided by imesting activities, such as 
financial institution interest income, gains on disposal of assets, and insurance 
recoveries on property loss. Operating expenses are those expenses related to the 
production of revenue. Nonoperating expenses are those expenses not directly 
related to the production of revenue and include items such as interest expense and 
losses on disposal of assets. 

Expenditures;Expenses 

In the government-wide tinancial ;.tatements, expenses are classified by 
function for both governmental and business-type activities. In the fund financial 
statements. expenditures are classified as follows: 

Governmental Funds - By Character 
Proprietary Fund - By Operating and Nonoperating 

In the fund financial staternents. governmental funds report expenditures of 
fmancial resources. Propnetary funds report expenses relating to use of economic 
resources. 

Interfund Transfers 

Permanent reallocations of resources between funds of the reporting entity 
are classified as interfund transfers. For the purposes of the statement of activities, 
all interfund transfers between individual governmental funds have been eliminated. 

F. Revenue Restnctions 

The Town has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from 
state or local requirements. The primary restricted revenue &ources include: 

Revenue Source Legal Restrictions of Use 

Sales tax 
Gas, water, and sewer revenue  

See Note 4 
Utility operations 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

G. Compensated Absences 

Town employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based upon 
their length of service. Vacation and sick leave must be used in the year accrued and 
cannot be carried over to future years. Full-time employees are eligihle to receive 10 
days of sick leave per fiscal year. Ernployees who resign or retire, or who are 
dismissed from employment, are not paid for any accrued sick leave and all such 
leave is cancelled on the date of separation. 

H. 1_Tse of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the tinancial 
statements. and the reported arnounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates 

(2) New Accounting Pronouncements 

The following accounting standard adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, scheduled to he implemented in the future, may affect the Town's financial staternents: 

GASB Statement 101, Compensated Absences. This standard updates the recopition and 
measurement guidance for compensated absences hy aligning the guidance under a unified model and 
by amending certain disclosures. This standard is effective for reporting period beginmng after 
December 15, 2023. The Town will include the requirements of this standard, as applicable, in its 
June 30, 2025, tinancial statements. The effect of this standard or its applicability to the Town is 
unknown at this time. 

(3) Ad Valorem Taxes 

Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of each year. 
Taxes are le‘ led by the Town in September or October and are actually hilled to taxpayers in 
December. Billed taxes become delinquent on January 1 of the following year. The Town bills and 
collects its own property taxes. Property tax revenues are recognized when levied to the extent that 
they result in current receivables. 

For the year ended June 30. 2024. taxes of 5.74 mills were levied on property with assessed 
valuations totaline $30,558,930 and were dedicated for general corporate purposes Total taxes 
levied were $175.408. Taxes receivable at June 30, 2024 of $7,578 is reported net of an allowance 
for uncollectible accounts totaling S3.789. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(4) Sales and Use Tax 

Proceeds of the two 1% sales and use taxes (accounted for in the Sales Tax Fund — a special 
revenue fund) levied by the Town (2024 collections $968,599) are dedicated for the following 
purposes in the following order Constructing and purchasing municipal, tire and police department 
facilities. furnishing and equipment; opening, construction, and improving drains, drainage canals, 
and subsurffice drainage: constructing, acquiring, or improving any work of public permanent 
improvements. and purchasing and acquiring all equipment and furnishings for public works, 
buildings, improvements, and facilities of the Town. 

Proceeds of the _1% sales and use taxes (accounted for in the Sunset Economic Development 
District Fund — a special revenue fund) levied by the Town (2024 collections $291,047) are dedicated 
for specific purposes. These taxes are deposited into a special tnist fund named the "Sunset 
Economic Development District No. 1 Trust Fund" the purpose of which is to fund econonuc 
development projects. as defined in LA RS 33:9038.34(4) and LA RS 33:9038.36. located within the 
District, and also to pay the costs of infrastructure improvements outside the District that benefit 
property in the District. 

(5) Cash. Interest-Bearinv Depo.its 

Under state law. the Town may deposit funds within a fiscal agent bank organized under the 
laws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the Union, or the laws of the United 
States. The Town may invest in direct obligations of the United States government, bonds, 
debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by federal agencies and:0r 
the United States go‘ernment, and time certificates of deposit of state hanks organized under 
Louisiana law and national hanks having principal offices in Louisiana. At June 30, 2024, the Town 
had cash and interest-bearing deposits (book balances) totaling $3,751,135 as follows 

Non interest-bearing deposits $ 1.643,813 
Interest-bearing deposits 2,071,641 
Time deposits 35,681 

Total 3,751,135 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, the Town's deposits may not he reco‘ered or the collateral securities that are in 
the possession of an outside party will not be recovered. These deposits are stated at cost, which 
approximates fair value. Under state law, deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured 
by federal deposit insurance, or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The niarket 
value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount 
on deposit with the fiscal agent hank. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal 
agent bank in a holding or custodial hank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. Deposit 
balances (bank balances) at June 30. 2024, are secured as follows: 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Bank balances S4.39.513 

Federal deposit insurance 500,000 

Pledged securities 3,717,536 

Total S4.1")7,536 

Excess (deficiency) S (161,977) 

Deposits in the amount of $3,727,536 were exposed to custodial credit risk These deposits 
are uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging institution's trust department or 
agent, but not in the Town's name. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. 
Deposits were under secured by approximately $161.977 at June 30, 2024. 

(10 Receivables 

consist of the following: 

Governmental 

Activities 

Business-type 

Activities Tutal 

Receivables at June 30. 2024 

 

Accounts $ - $126,956 $126,956 

 

Unbilled utihtv 

 

31,422 31,4/ 71 

 

Ad valorem taxes 3,789 

 

3,789 

 

Franchise taxes 35, '6' 

 

35,262 

 

Other 19,425 

 

19.425 

t 

Totals 

Due from Other Governmental Units 

$ 58,476 $ 158,378 $216,854 

   

Amounts due from other governmental units at June 30. 2024 consist of the following. 

Govenuriental Activities: 

 

State of Louisiana - beer tax revenues receivable $ 1,2.77 

State of Louisiana - racino revenue receivable 3,278 

Business-type Activities: 

 

State of Louisiana - Department of Health and Hospitals 5,441,458 

Total $5,446,013 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(8) Restricted Assets 

 

Restricted assets at June 30, 2024 consist of the following: 

Customers' deposits $143,147 

Bond sinking fund 48,501 

Bond reserve fund 48,271 

Depreciation and contingency fund 185,374 

Total restricted assets $425,293 

Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 is as follows: 

 

Beginning 

Balance Additions I)eletiom 

Ending 

Balance 

Governmental activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

    

Land $ 258.190 $ $ $ 258.190 

Other capital assets. 

    

Buildings and improvements 1,787.4/2 17,049 

 

1,8(14.471 

Machinely and equipment 1,059.741 20,083 

 

1,079.824 

Vehicles 413.766 83,03/ 

 

496.798 

Totals 3,519.119 1/0.164 

 

3.639.7'83 

Less accumulated depreciation 

    

Buildings and improvements 1,075.873 7 /,39/ 

 

1,148.265 

Machinery and equipment 1,037.062 7,265 

 

1,044.327 

Vehicles 257.808 48.977 

 

306,785 

Total accumulated depreciation 2.370,743 128.634 

 

1.41)9,377 

Governmental activities, 

capital assets, net 51.148.376 S (8.470) S S1.139.906 

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows. 

 

General government $ 65.342 

Police 43,321 

Fire 7,406 

Streets 12,565 

Tota1 depreciation expense $128,634 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Deletions 

Ending 
Balance 

Business-type activities. 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

  

Land $ 135.265 $ - $ 135.265 
Construction in proiTess 441.557 538,728 9£t).?K5 

Other capital assets. 

  

Utilitv system and extensions 7.746.393 7,746.393 
Machinery and equipment 146.734 146.734 
Vehicles 36.589 36.589 

Totals 8.506,538 538,728 9,045,266 

Less accumulated depreciation 

  

Utility system and extensions 5,958.435 122,800 6,081.235 
Machinery and equipment 66.738 8,508 75.246 
Vehicles 35.089 1,500 36.589 

Total accumulated depreciation 6,060.162 132,808 6,193.(►70 

Business-type activities, 
capital assets. net $2,446.276 $ 405,920 $ $2,852.196 

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities as follows. 

 

Gas system 

 

$ 4.815 

Water system 

 

71,932 
Sewer system 

 

56.061 

Total depreciation expense 

 

$131.80K 

(10) Accounts and Other Payables 

The accounts and other payables at June 30, 2024 consist of the following: 

 

Governmental 

Activities 

Business-Type 

Activities Total 

Accounts and other payables $ 95,443 $ 156 $ 95,599 

Retainage payable 

 

31,270 31,270 

Accrued salaries and benefits 11.549 700 13.249 

Totals $ 107,992 32,120 `.!; 140.11S 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(11) Changes in Long-Terni Liabilities 

The followrng is a summary of long-term liability transactions of the Town for the year ended 
June 30, 2024: 

 

Beginning 

Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 

Balance 

Amount due 

in one vear 

Long-term deht. 

     

Direct placements: 

     

Revenue bonds $3.412,427 S3,000.000 $ 133,385 $6,279,042 $ 57,000 
Direct bonowings: 

     

Loans payable 44,270 

 

39,058 5,212 5,212 

 

$3.456,697 53,000,000 $ 172,443 S6,284,154 $ 61,21/ 

Revenue bonds are associated with governmental activities and business-type activities and 
are liquidated by the General Fund and Utility Fund. Loans payable are associated with 
governmental activities and are liquidated by the General Fund. 

Long-term liabilities payable at June 30, 2024 are comprised of the following individual 
issues. 

Current 

Total Portion 

Governmental Activities: 

Revenue Bonds Payable - 

$250,000 Excess Revenue Bonds. Series 2010 due in aimual installments 
ranging from $14,000 to $23,000 through November 1, 2025: interest at 
3.5% to 4.85%: secured by a pledge of and payable solely from the 

proceeds of sales tax revenues. S 45.000 S-)2.000 

   

  

continued 
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Current 
Total Portion 

Business-Type Activities: 

Utility Revenue Bonds Payable - 

$440,000 Taxable Utility Re‘enue Bonds, Series 2017 due in annual 
installments ranging from $17,000 to $27,000 through Octoher 1, 2037: 
interest at 1.95%; secured by excess utility revenues. $ 331,000 $20,000 

$88,796 equipment loan dated July 8. 2021; interest at 3.95% 5,212 5,212 

$2,237,000 Taxable Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 A due in annual 
installments ranging trom $56,000 to $110,000 through Octoher 1, 2051; 
interest at 1.95%; for the purpose of constructing and acquinng 
improvements. extensions, and replacement to the watenvorks system of 
the Town. The honds were sold to the Louisiana Department of Health 
and Hospitals, Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund. ),31,,000 

$689,000 Taxable Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 B due in annual 
installments ranging from $19.000 to $30,000 through October 1, 2(42, 
interest at 1.95%; for the purpose of constnicting and acquiring 
impro‘ements. extensions, and replacement to the waterworks system of 
the Town. The bonds were sold to the Louisiana Department of Health 
and Hospitals, Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund. Thirty percent 
(30%) of the Town's obligation to repay the principal of the bonds will 
be forgiven simultaneously with the payment hy the Department of each 
installment of the purchase price of the bonds. At the time of the debt 
forgiveness, these amounts are recognized as grant revenue. 

53,000.000 Taxable Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 due in annual 
instalhnents ranging from $137,000 to $164,000 through October 1, 
2044; interest at 0.45%; for the purpose of constructing and acquinng 
extensions, improvements, and replacements to the sewerage system of 
the Town The bonds were sold to the Louisiana Department of 
Environmental Quality, Clean Water Revolving Loan Fund. 9.1% of the 
Town's obligation to repay the principal of the bonds will be forgiven 
simultaneously with the payment by the Department of each installment 
of the purchase price of the bonds. At the time of the debt forgiveness, 
these amounts are recognized as grant revenue. 

58.561 10,000 

2,992,481       

Total bonds payable applicable to business-type activities $6,239,254 $40,212 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Annual deht service requirements of bonds and loans outstanding are as follows. 

Year Ended 

June 30, 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total 

 

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2025 $ 22,000 1,633 S 40,212 $ 21,759 $ 62,212 $ 13,392 

2026 23,000 558 236,000 71,696 259,000 72,1 54 

2027 

  

239,000 69,024 1 39,000 69,024 

2028 

  

245,0(10 66,285 145,000 66,285 

2029 

  

249,0(10 63,466 149,000 63,466 

2030-2034 

  

1,299,000 271,608 1,299,000 271,608 

2035-2039 

  

1,383,000 192,514 1,383,000 192,514 

2040-2044 

  

1,477,561 119,808 1,477,561 119,808 

2045-2049 

  

644,481 56,469 644,481 56,469 

2050-2052 

  

426,(100 66,982 426,000 66,982 

Total $ 45,000 $ 2,191 $6,239,254 $999,610 $6,284,254 $1,001,801 

(12) Flow of Funds: Restrictions on I_Ne 

Governmental activities. Sales Tax Revenue Bonds - 

Under the terms of the $250,000 Excess Revenue Bonds issued on Novetnber 22, 2010, a 
portion of the sales tax revenues in the Sale Tax Fund are pledged and dedicated to the retirement of 
the said bonds and are to be set aside into the following special fund: 

Each month, there will be set aside intu a fimd called thr "Bond and Interest Sinking Fund-
the amount of $1,920. Such transfers shall he fully sufficient to assure the prompt payment of 
principal and interest installments as they become due and may be used only for such payments. 

During the year ended June 30, 2024, the monthly sinking fund transfers were made as 
required by the agreement. 
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Business-Type Acti% ities: Utility Revenue Bonds - 

Under the terms uf the $440,000 Taxable Utility Revenue Bonds issued December 23, 2017, 
the $2,237,000 Taxable Utility Revenues Bonds, Series 2022A and the $689,000 Taxable Utility 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2022B issued December 16, 2022, and the S3,000,000 Taxable Utility 
Revenue Bonds issued May 23, 2(►24. income and revenues (hereinafter referred to as revenue) of 
every nature, earned or derived from operation of the Utility System, are pledged and dedicated to the 
retirement of said bonds and are tu be set aside intu the following special funds: 

Each month. there will be set aside into a fund called the "Town of Sunset Bond SinkinL, 
Fund" (the "Sinking Fund") a sum equal to 1 6 of the interest falling due on the next interest payment 
date, and a sum equal to 1.12 of the principal falling due on the next principal date on all bonds 
payable from the Sinking Fund. Transfers from the Sinking Fund should be made to the paying agent 
bank at least three (3) days in advance of the date on which the payment of principal or interest falls 
due. 

There shall also be set aside into a "Town of Sunset Utilities Revenue Bond Reserve Fund" 
(the "R.eserve Fund") a sum equal to 25% of the amount required to be paid into the Sinking Fund for 
each month until such time as there has been accumulated therein a sum equal to the Reserve Fund 
requirement of S86,810. Such amounts may he used only for the payment of maturinL,  bonds and 
interest on all bonds payable from the Sinking Fund as to which there would otherwise be default. 

Funds will also be set aside into a "*Town of Sunset Utilities Depreciation and Contingencies 
Fund" (the "Contingencies Fund"). a sum equal to 5% of the net rel, enues of the preceding month, 
before the 20th day of each month. Such payments shall continue until there has been accumulated in 
the Contingencies Fund. the sum of $125,000. Money in this fund may be used to care for 
extensions, additions, improvements, renewals, and replacements necessary to properly operate the 
System. However, if the balance is reduced below 5125,000, such payments shall be resumed and 
continued until the said maximum amount is again accumulated. 

During the year ended June 30, 2024. the monthly sinking, resen.e. and depreciation and 
contingency fund transfers were made as required by the agreement 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(13) Pension Plans 

The Town participates in two cost-sharing defined benefit plans. each administered by 
separate public employee retirement systems. Article X. Section 29(F) of the Louisiana Constitution 
of 1974 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of all plans administered by 
these public employee retirement systems to the State Legislature. These plans are not closed to new 
entrants. Substantially all Town employees participate in one of the following retirement systems: 

Plan Descriptions 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System NERS)  provides retirement. disability, and sun IN or 
benefits to ehgible employees and their beneficiaries as defined m LRS 11:1731 and 11.1781. The 
Town participates in Plan A. 

State of Louisiana — Nlunicipal Pohce Employees' Retirement System (MPERS)  provides retirement, 
disahility, and survivor benefits to eligible employees and their beneficiaries as defined in the LRS 
11:2211 and 11:2220. 

The system's financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Employer and employee contributions are recognized in the period in which the employee is 
compensated for services perfimmed. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payahle in 
accordance with the terms of each plan. Interest income is recognized when earned. Ad valorem 
taxes and revenue sharing monies are recognized in the year collected by the tax collector. 

A brief summary of elieibility and benefits of the plans are provided in the following table: 

MERS 1YIPERS 

Final average salary 

Years of service required and;or age eligible for 
benefits 

Final al, erage 
compensation 

25 years of any age 
10 years age 60 

20 years any age' 

 

Highest 36 months 

or 60 months' 

25 years of any age 
20 years age 55 
12 years age 55 

20 years any age' 

30 years any age3 

25 years age 553 

10 years age 603 

Benefit percent per yea.rs of service 

' With actuanal reduced benefits 
• Membership Lonimencim; January l. 2013 

• Under non hazardous duty sub plan January I 20)3 
• Menibership sommencing January I. 2013 uon hazardous duty plan 2 q°,0, hazardous plan 3 0%. 

membership prior to January I. 2013 3 33°O 

1 .50 - 3.33%4 
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Contributions 

Article X. Section 29 (E)(2)(a) uf the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the Legislature 
the authority to determine employee contributions. Employer contributions are actuarially 
determined using statutorily established methods on an annual basis and are constitutionally required 
to cover the employer's portion of the normal cost and provide for the amortization of the unfunded 
accrued liability. Employer contributions are adopted hy the Legislature annually upon 
reconunendation of the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committer. In addition, MERS 
receives a percentage of ad valorem taxes collected parishes, and MPERS receives a percentage of 
insurance premium tax monies as additional employer contributions. These entities are not 
participating employers in the pension systems and are considered to be nonemployer contributing 
entities. Contributions of employers, and nonemployer contributing entities effective for the year 
ended June 30, 2024 for the defined benefit pension plans in which the Town is a participating 
employer were as follows. 

Plan  

Act ive Member 

Contnbution 

Percentage 

Employer 

Contribution 

Percentage  

Amount From 

Nonemployer 

Contributing 

Entities  

Amount of 

Government 

Contributions 
         
MERS 10.00% 29.50% ¶ 3,827 $ 28,083 

MPERS 10.00% 33.925% ¶ 8,246 $ 34,546 

Net Pension Liability 

The Town's net pension liability at June 30, 2024 is comprised of its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability relating to each of the cost-sharing plans in which the Town is a participating employer. 
The Town's net pension liability tbr each plan was measured as of the plans' measurement date (June 30, 
2023 for all plans) and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The TOWII's proportionate share of the net pension liability for 
each of the plans in which it participates was based on the Town's required contnbutions in proportion to 
total required contrihutions for all employers. 

As of the most recent measurement date, the Town's proportion for each plan and the change in 
proportion from the prior measuretnent date were as follows: 

Plan 

Proportionate 
Share of Net 

Pension Liability  

¶ 185.930 
377,761  

1; 563.691  

Proportionate 
Share (%) of Net 
Pension Liability  

050872% 
035756% 

Increase; ( Decrease) 
from Prior 

Measurement Date 

MERS 
MPERS 

Total 

-0.027753% 
0.015808% 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Since the measurement date of the net pension liability was June 30, 2023, the net pension 
liability is based upon fiduciary net position for each of the plans as of that date. Detailed information 
about each pension plan's assets, deterred outflows. deferred inflows, and fiduciary net position that was 
used in the measurement of the Town's net pension liahility is available in the separately issued plan 
financial reports for that fiscal year. The tinancial report for each plan may be accessed on their website 
as follows: 

MERS - http: www.mersla.com  

MPERS - http: lampeN.org_.  

Actuarial Assumptions 

The following table provides information concerning actuarial assumptions used in the 
determination of the total pension liability for each of the defined benefit plans in which the Town is a 
participating employer: 

 

MERS MPERS 
Date of experience study on which significant 7:1:2013 - 7i1i2014 - 
assumptions are hased 6;30;2018 6.'30 2019 

Expected remaining service lives 3 4 

Inflation Rate 1.500% '.50°.;) 

Investment rate of return 6.85% 6.75% 

Projected salary increases 4.5% - 6.4% 4.70°.;. -12.30°.;. 

Projected benefit changes including COLAs None None 

Source of mortality assumptions (1), (2), (3) (4), (5) 

t 1 t PuttG-21110(b) Healthy Retiree Table set equal to 126% for males and females using respective 
male and female MP201E: scales 

12) PutiG-241101Bi Employee Table set equal to 120t% for males and females inmg iespective male 
and fentak MP2018 scales 

t3i PuhNS-2010(B) Disabled Retiree Tables set equal to 120% foi males and females with full 
gcnaatioual MP2618 scale. 

1.1) Puti-21i10 Public Retirement Plan Mortality Table for Safety Below-Median Healthy 
Ratites mulnplied by 115% for males and 125".0 for females. each witli full generanonal 
projection using the MP2019 scale. 

15) Pub-2610 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table hir Safety Disabled Reurees muluplied by 
10560 for males and 115'4 tot females each with full generational piojection using MP2619 Siaks. 
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Cost of Living Adjustments 

The pension plans in which the Town participates have the authority to grant cost-of-living 
adjustments (COLAs) on an ad hoc basis. Pursuant to LRS 11:242(B), the power of the Board of 
Trustees of the statewide systems (MERS and MPERS) to grant a COLA is effective in calendar years 
that the legislature fails to grant a COLA. unless in the legislation granting a COLA. the legislature 
authorizes the Board of Trustees to provide an additional COLA. The authority to grant a COLA by the 
Board is subject to the funded status and interest earnings. The effects of the benefit changes made as a 
result of the COLAs is included in the measurement of the total pension liability as of the measurement 
date at which the ad hoc COLA was ganted and the amount is known and reasonably estimable. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rates used to measure the Town's total pension liability for each plan and the 
sigmficant assumptions used ui the deterrnmation of the discount rate for each plan are as follows. 

NIERS MPERS 

Discount rate 6,85% 6.75% 

Change in discount rate from prior valuation 0.000°.-0 0.000% 

Plan cash flow assumptions (1) { 

Rates incorporated in the Discount Rate: 

Long-term Rate of Return 6.95% 8.06% 

Periods applied All All 

Municipal Bond Rate N'A NSA 

'Plan Cash Flow Assumptiims: 

Plan mcinber coati-Muttons will bc made at the currcili contributions rates and sponsor 

contribuilis will be uiade at the actuanally determined rates 

The discount rates used to measure the Town's total pension liability for each plan are equal to the 
long-terrn expected rate of return on pension plan imestments that are expected to he used to finance the 
payment of benefits. For MERS and MPERS, the long-term expected rate of return for each plan was 
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of 
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-tenn expected rate of return by 
weighting the expected fiiture real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding 
expected inflation and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. 
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The target allocation and hest estimates of anthmetic:geometric real rates of return for each major 
asset class are summarized for each plan in the following tables: 

MERS* NIPERS* 

Asset (-lass 
Target 

Allocation 

Long-term 
Expec ted 
Real Rate 
of Return 

Target 
Allocation 

Long-term 
Expected 
Real Rate 
of Return 

Fixed Income 29% 1.26*6 34.0% 1 12% 
Equities 56% 2.44* i) 52.0% 3.29% 
Alternative Investments 15% 0.65% 14.0% 0.95% 

Totals 100% 4.35% DM% 5.3(% 

Inflation 

 

7.50(3. ) 

 

2.54- 0 

Expected Nominal Return 

 

6 85*.i) 

 

7.90% 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 
to Pensions: 

Changes in the net pension liahility may either be reported m pension expense in the year the 
change occurred or recotmized as a deferred outflow ot resources or a deferred inflow of resources in the 
year the change occurred and amortized into pension expense over a number of years. For the year ended 
June 30. 2024, the Town recognized $104.884 in pension expense (benefit) related to all detined benefit 
plans in which it participates. MERS and MPERS recognized revenues in the amount of $12.073 in ad 
valorem taxes and insurance premium tax monies collected from nonemployer contrihuting entities. 

At June 30, 2024, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

Deferred Inflows 
ot Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experiences )6.735 S 1.858 

Changes of assumptions 6.304 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 62,146 

Change in proportion and differences between employer 
contrihutions and proportionate share of contributions 119.446 67.315 

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 67,619  

Total 5277,260 560,173  
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Deferred outflows of resources of S62,629 resulting from the employer contributions subsequent 
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability during the 
subsequent vear. Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions to be recognized in pension expense are as follows. 

Net Amount 
Year Ended Recognized in 

June 30 Pension Expense  
70)5 $ 44,904 
70)6 15,568 
70)7 88,374 
70)8 (3,388) 

S 145,458  

Sensitivity of the Town's Proportional Share of the Net Pension Liabilities to Changes in the 
I)isrount Rate 

The following presents the Town's proportionate shares of the net pension liabilities of the plans, 
calculated using their respective discount rates, as well as what the Town's proportionate shares of the 
net pension liabilities would be if they were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point 
lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate. 

Net Pension Liability 

Current 1% Current 1% 

Plan Discount Rate Decrease Discount Rate Increase 

MERS $ 257,769 S 185.030 $ 125,248 

MPERS 531.540 377.761 249,299 

Total S 789.309 S 563.691 374,547 

Payabks to Pension Plans 

At June 30, 2024, the Town reported payahles of $5,718 for the outstanding amount of 
contributions due to the retirement systems thr the year. 

k14) Risk Management 

The Town is exposed to risks of loss in the areas of health care, general and auto liability, 
property hazards and workers' compensation. All of these risks are handled hy purchasing 
commercial insurance coverage. There have been no signiticant reductions in the insurance coverage 
during the year, nor ha‘e settlements exceeded co‘erane for thr past three years. 

42 



TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(15) Litigation and Claims 

At June 30, 2024, the Town was involved in certain lawsuits arising from the normal course 
of operations, which have been referred to its insurance provider. In the opinion of the Town's legal 
counsel. the Town has no liability in excess of insurance coverage. 

(16) On-Behalf Payment of Salaries 

The State of Louisiana paid the Town's policemen and firemen $27,340 of supplernental pay 
during the year ended June 30. 2024. Such payments are recorded as intergovernmental revenues and 
public safety expenditures in the government-wide and General Fund financial statements. 

ts 17) Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Mayor 

A detail of compensation. benefits, and other payrnents paid to Mayor Charles James for the 
year ended June 30, 2024 follows: 

Purpose Amount  

Salary S 29.570 

Reimbursements 2.004 

Total S 31.574 

(18) Compensation of Town Officials 

paid to the Mayor and Board of Aldermen fin-  the vear ended June A detail of cornpensation 
30, 2024 follows: 

Charles James. Mayor $29,570 

Aldennen. 

 

Bernice Smith $ 7,325 

Mark Pitre 6,908 

Joseph Darrell Burleigh 6,515 

Rohert L. Carmouche 

 

Devin A. Henry 

4

:8

1

0

1) 

1 

Jarrod Shaw 

 

Katherine S. Charles 

4,(0(

5

) 

1 9
)
2 

$62,703 
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(19) Interfund Receivables;Pavables  

A. A summary of Intel-111nd receivables and payables at June 30. 2024: 

Interfund Inter fund 

Receivables Payables 
Major funds: 

Governmental funds: 
Cieneral Fund $ 563,892 $ 294,379 
Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund 230.499 

Proprietary fund: 
Utility Fund 481,179 

Nomnajor funds: 
Governmental funds: 

Debt Service Fund 18,833  

Total $ 794,391 $ 794,391  

The amounts due to various other funds are for short-term loans. 

B. Transfers consisted of the following at June 30. 2024: 

Transfers In Transfers Out 

Major funds: 

Governmental funds: 

General Fund 

Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund 

Nonmajor timds: 

Governmental funds: 

Debt Sen ice Fund 

Total 

$1,082.877 

23.156 

s 1.1 06,033 
 

$ - 

1.106,033 

 $1.106,033         

Transfers are used to (a) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires 
to collect them to the fund that statute or hudgxt requires to expend them and to (b) use 
unrestncted revenues collected in the general fund to finance arious programs accounted for 
in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Buti2etary Comparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Budget 

Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 

(Negative) 

 

Ongmal Final 

Revenues: 

    

Taxes $ 340,750 $ 335,703 S 330,669 $ (5,034) 

Licenses and peimits 205,500 201,201 213,650 12,449 
Intergovernmental 91,825 425,533 407,344 (18,189) 

Fines and forfeits 327.550 195.939 227,144 31;4)5 
Miscellaneous 63.3/5 85.835 107,512 21,677 

Total revenues 1,0/8,950 1.244,211 1,286,319 42,108 

Expenditures: 

    

Cieneral government 716.500 867.0(i1 82',947 44,114 

Public safety - 

    

Police 745,075 789,879 748,648 41,231 
Fire 174.500 225.965 262,737 i 36,772) 

Streets 201,786 260,556 255.630 4.926 
Debt service 22.605 22.605 8,844 13,761 
Capital outlay 15,100 83.032 119,864 (36,832) 

Total expenditures 1,875.566 2,249.098 .2.21S,67(► 30,4.28 

Deficiency of revenues 
over expenditures (846,616) (1.004.887) (932,351) 7.2,536 

Other financing sources: 

    

Transfers in 925.000 1.027.877 1.082,877 55,000 

Net change in fund balance 78,384 22,990 150.526 127.536 

Fund balance. begiiming 1,551.590 1.551.590 1,551,590 

 

Fund balance, ending S 1.629.974 S 1.574.5S0 S 1,702.116 S 127.536 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET. LOUISIANA 
Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Budget 

 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

 

Original Final 

Revenues: 

    

Taxes S 780,000 S 920,435 S 968,599 S 48,164 

Miscellaneous - interest and other 300 133 132 (1 ) 

Total revenues 780,300 9)0,568 968,731 48.163 

Expenditures: 

    

General government - 

    

Collection fees 13.9'~5 14,734 6.879 7,855 
Professional fees 3.150 ) ,1 )3 1,642 481 

Office expense 75 61 1,037 (976) 

Total expenditures 17, -)0) 16,918 9.558 7.36(1 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 763,10) 903,650 959.173 

 

Other financing uses: 

    

Transfers out (927,000) (1.027,877) (1.106,033) (78.156) 

Net change in fund balance (163.900) (124,227) (146.860) (22,633) 

Fund balance, beginning 495.760 495.760 495,760 

 

Fund balance, ending S 331.860 S 371.533 S 348.900 S (22,633) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 
Economic Development District Special Revenue Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Bud,2ct 

 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Ne alive) 

 

original Final Actual 

Revenues: 

    

Taxes $ 420,000 $ 287,747 $ 291,047 S 3,30() 

Expenditures: 

    

General govermnent - 

Collection fees 7,515 5,458 2.887 7,571 

Net change m fund balance 41/.475 282,289 288.160 5,871 

Fund balance, beginning 514,636 514,636 514,636 

 

Fund balance. ending S 927,111 S 796,915 s 8w,796 S 5,871 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Liabihty 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Employer 
Proportion 

of the 
Net Pension 

Liabihty 
(Asset) 

Employer 
Proportionate 
Share of the 
Net Pension 

Liability 
(Asset) 

Employer's 
Proportionate Share 
of the Net Pension 

Liability (Asset) as a 
Percentage of its 
Covered Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position 

as a Percentage 
of the Total 

Pension Liability  

Year 
Ended 

June 30 
Co% ered 
Payroll 

NIunicipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana - Plan A: 
2024 S 185.930 0.050872% $ 102,251 181.84% 72.46% 
2023 326,548 0.078625% 155,896 209.47% 67.87% 
"I 0 "Y) 182,768 0.065708% 130,109 140.47% 77.82% 
2021 274,424 I).063431% 121,446 225.96% 64.52% 
2020 415,296 0.099390% 183.981 225.73% 64.68% 
2019 512,405 0.123749'!.0 227,885 224.85% 63.94% 
2018 5'75,315 0.125573% 228,047 230.36% (i2.49% 
2017 540,435 0.131855% 235,886 229.11% 62.11% 
2016 438,193 0.12266 209,368 209.29% 66.18% 
2015 317,185 0.123589% 185,377 171.10% 73.99% 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 

  

2024 S 377,761 0.035756% $ 121,134 311.85% 71.30% 
2023 203,904 0.019948% 56,408 361.48% 70.80% 
2022 95,673 0.017948% 57,036 167.74% 84.09°;) 
2021 177,425 0.019197% 59,401 298.69% 70.94% 
2020 167,412 0.184340% 57,570 290.80% 71.01% 
2019 164,922 0.019508'!.o 57,570 286.47% 71.89% 
2018 161,888 0.018543% 57,570 281.20% 70.08% 
2017 164,999 0.017604% 49,311 334.61% 66.04% 
2016 144,419 0.018435% 49,311 292.87% 70.73°;) 
2015 118,509 0.018943% 48,937 242.17% 75.10% 

* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET. LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Employer Pension Contrihutiuns 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2024 

Contributions in 
Relation to Contributions 

Contractually Contractually Contrihution as a % of 
Year Ended Required Required Deficiency Covered Covered 

June 30, Contribution Contribut i on (Excess) Payroll Payroll 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana - Plan A: 
2024 $ 28,083 $ 28,083 $ 95,198 29.50% 
1023 30,163 30,163 102,251 29.50% 
2022 45,990 45,990 155,896 29.50% 
/011 38,383 38,383 130,109 29.50% 
2020 33,645 33,645 121,446 27.70% 
2019 47,835 47,835 183,981 26.00% 
/018 56,402 56,402 227,885 24.75% 
2017 51,881 51,881 228,047 /2.75% 
2016 46,589 46,589 235,886 19.75% 
/015 41,350 41,350 209,368 19.75% 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirenient System of Louisiana: 

  

2024 $ 34,546 $ 34,546 $ 101,831 33.925% 
2023 37,853 37,853 121,134 31.25% 
2022 16,781 16,781 56,408 /9.75% 
/011 19,250 19,250 57,036 33.75% 
2020 19,305 19,305 59,401 32.50% 
2019 18,566 18,566 57,570 3/.15% 
/018 17,703 17,703 57,570 30.75% 
2017 18,279 18,279 57,570 31.75% 
2016 14,547 14,547 49,311 29.50% 
/015 15,533 15,533 49,311 31.50% 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Required Supplementary Intormation 

Budget and Budgetary Accounting 

The Town follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements: 

1. The Town Clerk subnuts, no later than 15 days prior to the beginning of each 
fiscal year, to the Mayor and Board of Aldermen, a proposed operating 
budget. 

A summary of the proposed budget is published, and the public notified that 
the proposed hudget is available for puhlic inspection At the same time, a 
public hearing is called. 

3 A public hearing is held on the proposed hudget at least ten days after 
publication of the call for the hearing. 

4. Afier the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary 
to finalize and implement the hudget, the hudget is adopted through passage 
of an ordinance prior to the commencement of the tiscal year fbr which the 
budget is heing adopted. 

5. Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, 
program or function to another or involving increases in expenditures 
resulting from revenues exceeding amounts estimated require the approval of 
the Board of Aldermen. 

6. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

7. Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Budgeted amounts are as originally 
adopted or as amended by the Board of Aldermen. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Required Supplementary Intormation 

(2) Pension Plans 

Changes in benefit tenns — There were no changes in benefit terms. 

Changes of assumptions — Change, of assumptions ahout future economic or demographic 
factors or of other inputs were recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization 
method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all 
employees that are provided with pensions through the plans. These assumptions include the rate of 
investment return, mortality of plan members, rate of salary increase. rates of retirement, rates of 
termination. rates of disability, and ‘arious other factors that have an impact on the cost of the plan. 

Amounts reported in fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 for the various pension plans reflect the 
tbllowing changes used to measure the total pension liability: 

# 

Year ended 
June 30, 

Discount 
Rate 

Investment Expected 
Rate Inflation Remaining 

of Return Rate Service Lives 

Projected 
Salary 

Increase 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System uf Louisiana - Plan A: 

 

1014 6.85% 6.85% /.50% 3 4.5-6.4% 
)013 6.85% 6.85% 1.50% 3 4.5-6A% 
-i fy, 6.85% 6.85% 1.50% 3 4.5-6.4% 
2021 6.95% 6.95% 1.50% 3 4.5-6.4% 
10'0 7.00% 7.00% 1.50% 3 4.5-6.4'!..) 
2019 7.275% 7.275% 1.60% 3 5.00% 
)018 7.40% 7.40% 1.775'!..) 4 5.00% 
2017 7.50% 7.50°-o 2.875% 4 5.00% 
1 016 7.50% 7.50% 1.875% 4 5.00% 
)015 7.75% 7.75% 3.00% 4 5.75% 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 

  

2024 6.75% 6.75% 1.50% 4 4.70-12.30% 
)0)3 6.75% 6.75% 1.50% 4 4.70-12.30% 
NV) 6.75% 6.75% 1.50% 4 4.70-12.30°.;. 
2021 6.95% 6.95% 1.50% 4 4.70-12.30% 
2020 7.125% 7.125% 1.50% 4 4.25-9.75% 
2019 7.10% 7.20% 1.60% 4 4.25-9.75°.;) 
1 018 7.3/5% 7.315% 1.70% 4 4.25-9.75°.;. 
2017 7.50% 7.50% 1.875% 4 4.25-9.75% 
2016 7.50% 7.50% 1.875% 4 4.25-9.75% 
)015 7.50% 7.50% 3.00% 4 4.0-10.0% 

# The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 
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OTHER SUPPLENIENTARY INFORMATION 
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TOWN OF SUNSET. LOUISLANA 
Sunset. Louisiana 

Justice System Fmading Schedule - Collecting:Disbursing Entity 
As Reipured by Act 87 ut the 2020 Regular Legislative Session 

Entity Name: Town uf Sunset. Louisiana 
LLA Entity ID# 2323 First Six Second Six 
Date that reporting period ended: 6:30/2024 hlonth Month 

Pei iod Ended Period Ended 
Cash Basis Presentation December 31, 2023 June 30, 2024 

Beginning balance of amounts collected $ - S - 

Add: Collections 

Bond fees 16.401 13.655 

Criminal fines - other 90.714 107.133  

Subtotal Collections 116.1 I 5 120.788 

Less Disbursements to Governments & Nonprofits 

Louisiana Associarion of Chiefs of Police:Cost 824 1.192 

St. Landry Crime Stoppers. Inc.!Cost 824 1.192 

CMISiCost 1.374 1,788 

Louisiana Supreme Court;Cost 246 286 

Louisiana Conunission on Law Enforcement/Fees and cost 962 1.168 

Louisiana Department of Health Tnnunatic Head Spinal Cord Injury Trust:Cost 895 1,970 

Acadiana Crimmalistics Laboratory Commission:Cost 12.690 12.678 

Less Amounts Retained by Collecting Agency 
Amount "self-disbursed" tu collecting agency 

Criminal fines•costs - other 98.300 100.374 

Less Disbursements tu Individuals/3rd party collection or processing agencies: 

Bond fee refunds 140 

Subtotal DisbursemeutsfRetalnage 116.1 I 5 11 4).783  

Total: Ending Balance of Amounts Collected but not I)i.ebursedJRetained 
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COMPLIANCE, AND 

OTHER MATTERS 
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* A Professional Accounting Corporation INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorable Charles James, Mayor 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 

Town of Sunset, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of 
Sunset, Louisiana (Town), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements and have issued our report 
thereon dated November 7, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not 
identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of current and prior year audit findings and 
management's corrective action plan, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to 
be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect 
and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 
entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider 
the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of current and prior year audit findings and 
management's corrective action plan as items 2024-001, 2024-002 and 2024-003 to be material weaknesses. 



A significant deficiency is a deficiency. or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is 
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of current and prior year 
audit tindings and management's corrective action plan as iteni 2024-104 to be a significant deficiency. 

Report on Conipliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonahle assurance about whether the Town's financial statements are free 
front material misstatement, we performed tests ot its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of current and prior year audit fmdmgs and 
mannement's corrective action plan as items 2024-005 and 2024-006. 

Town of Sunset, Louisiana's Respouse to Findings 

Government Auditing An:dards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Town's 
response to the findims identified in our audit and described in the accompany= schedule of current and 
prior year audit findings and management's corrective action plan. The Town's response was not subjected to 
the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on the response. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose ot this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Goverment Auditing Standurds in considenng the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. Although the intended use of this report may be 
limited, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a 
public document. 

Kolder, Maven & Company, LLC 
Certitied Public Accountants 

Ville Platte, Louisiana 
November 7, 2024 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Summary Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Part 1. C'urrent Year Findinus and Management's Corrective Action Plan 

A. Internal Control Findings - 

2024-001 Inadequate Segregation of Accounting Functions 

Fiscal year finding initially occw-red: 2016 

CRITERIA: AU-C§315.04, Understanding the Entity and its Environment and assessing rhe Risks 
of Material Misstatemem, defines internal control as follows: "Internal control is a process, 
affected by those charged with governance, management, and other personnel, designed to prm ide 
reasonahle assurance ahout the achievement of objectives with regard to reliability of financial 
reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of orwrations, and compliance with apphcable laws and 
regulations." 

CONDITION: The Town did not have adequate segregation of functions within the accounting 
system. 

CAUSE: The cause of the condition is the fact that the Town does not have a sufficient number of 
individuals perfonning administrative and financial duties so as to provide adequate segregation of 
accounting and financial duties. 

EFFECT: Failure to adequately segregate accounting and tinancial functions increases the risk 
that errors and:or irregularities including fraud and.or defalcations may occur and not be prevented 
and:or detected. 

RECOMMENDATION. Management should evaluate the cost 1, s. benefit of complete 
segregation and whenever possihle, reassign incompatible duties among different employees to 
ensure that a single employee does not have control of more than one of the following 
responsibilities: t 1) authorization; (2) custody: (3) record keeping; and (4) reconciliation. 

MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTION ACTION PLAN: Management has determined that it is not 
cost effective to achieve complete segregation of duties within the accounting department. 

2024-002 Reconciliation of Accounts 

Fiscal year finding initially occurred: 2016 

CRITERIA: The Town should have a control policy according to which all balance sheet accounts 
are reconciled to supporting schedules and subsidiary ledgers on a monthly basis. Not reconciling 
detailed subsidiary ledgers and statements to the balances in the general ledger on a monthly basis 
is a fraud nsk factor. 

CONDITION: The Town did not have adequate procedures in place to reconcile balance sheet 
accounts to appropriate supporting documentation. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Summary Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

CAUSE: The cause of the condition is the result of a failure to design or implement policies and 
procedures to achieve adequate internal control 

EFFECT: Errors or irregularities could be made in the recording of deposits, bilhngs, payments, 
adjustments, or voided receipts without being detected in a timely nianner. 

RECOMMENDATION. The Town should estahlish policies and procedures to reconcile balance 
sheet accounts to appropriate supporting documentation on a monthly basis in order to identify and 
correct errors in a timely manner. 

MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTION ACTION PLAN. Management will establish procedures to 
reconcile all balance ;lieet accounts. 

2024-003 Written Policies and Procedures 

Fiscal year finding initially occurred: 2022 

CRITERIA: Fonnal written policies and procedures are necessary as a clear understanding of 
what should be done, how it should be done, who should do it, and when it should be done and 
ensure the procedures frillowed meet management's expectations. Written procedures aid in the 
continuity of operation and for cross-training staff. 

CONDITION. The Town does not have written policies and procedures for budgeting, 
purchasing, disbursements, receipts. collections, payroll. personnel. contracting, use of credit cards, 
travel and expense reimbursements, ethics, debt service, capital asset management, and the 
safeguarding of traffic tickets. 

CAUSE: The cause of the condition is the fact that the Town has not properly documented its 
policies and procedures. 

EFFECT: Faihtre to adopt forrnal written policies and procedures increases the risk that irnproper 
use of Town assets or violations of policy may occur and not be identified. 

RECOMMENDATION. Manaeement should adopt formal written policies and procedures thr 
budgeting. purchasing. disbursements. receipts.collections. payroll personnel, contracting. use of 
credit cards, travel and expense reimbursements, ethics, debt service, capital asset management, 
and the safeguarding of traffic tickets. 

MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTION ACTION PLAN: Management will review policies and 
procedures and will properly document procedures in place for budgeting, purchasing, 
disbursements, receiptsicollections, payrollipersonnel, contractine, use of credit cards, travel and 
expense reimbursements. ethics. debt service, capital asset management, and the safeguarding of 
traffic tickets. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Summary Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

2024-01)4 Cutoff Policy 

Fiscal year tinding initially occurred: 20'4 

CRITERIA: The Town's cutoff policy states that a utility customer will be considered delinquent 
if the account balance is not paid by the 5th  of the month. A 1.5% penalty and a $2 notice fee 
should be applied to all accounts delinquent after the 5th  of the month. Accounts are to be cut off 
after the 15th of the month after becoming delinquent. 

CONDITION: During a test of utility accounts of the Town's customers, it was noted that some 
accounts are not being paid in full or timely, and the customers, including employees and town 
officials, continue to receive service in violation of the Town's cutoff policy. 

CAUSE: The Town has not properly followed its established policies and procedures regarding 
delinquent accounts and the proper cut-off procedures to disconnect services related to 
nonpayment by customers. 

EFFECT: Failure to follow established policies and procedures increases the risk of not hating 
continuity of operations and the risk of long outstanding collections of utility service revenue. 

RECOMMENDATION: Management should consistently comply with its established cutoff 
policy and cut off utility services of customers, including employees and Town of officials, who 
do not pay within the time limit stated in the cutoff policy. 

MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTION ACTION PLAN. The Town will adhere to the established 
cutoff policy in the future. 

B. Compliance Findings - 

2024-005 Uncollateralized I)epusit5 

Fiscal year tinding initially occurred: 2024 

CRITERIA: LA R.S. 391225 states that the amount of the security shall at all times he equal to 
one hundred percent of the amount of collected funds on deposit to the credit of each depositing 
authority except that portion of the deposits insured hy any governmental agency insuring bank 
deposits which is organized under the laws of the United States. 

CONDITION. The Town had unsecured deposits of approximately $161,977 at one financial 
institution at June 30, 2024. 

CAUSE: The Town did not have adequate controls or policies and procedures established to 
ensure deposits were properly secured as required by LA R S. 39:1225 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Summary Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

EFFECT: Failure to fully secure bank balances increases the risk of loss and is a violation of state 
law. 

RECONfMENDATION. The Town should implement control procedures to ensure deposits are 
adequately secured at all times as required hy LA R.S. 39:1225 

MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTION ACTION PLAN: The Town received a large deposit shortly 
before year end which caused the Town's total deposits to exceed the total amounts secured. 
Additional securities were not pledged on June 30. 2024, due to an oversight: however. the matter 
was corrected by July 1, 2024. All deposits are fully secured as of the date of this report. 

2024-0(16 Noncompliance with Bond Covenant 

Fiscal year finding initially occuned: 2024 

CRITERIA: The various bond ordinances for the Town's Utility Revenue Bonds include a rate 
covenant which requires the Town to establish rates that will provide revenues in each year, afier 
paying all reasonable and necessary expense of operating and maintaining the utility system, at 
least equal to 125% of the largest amount of pnncipal and interest maturing on the bonds in any 
future bond year. The rate covenant also states that in the event and to the extent that the revenues 
of the system are insufficient to satisfy the obligations payable from the tunds and accounts 
described in the bond ordinance, or the rate covenant, the Town may take into account other 
lawfully available sources of funding. provided that the amount of such fundina shall be actually 
hudgeted for such purposes at the beginning of each fiscal year. 

CONDITION. The Town's computed debt service coverage ratio was less than the required 125% 
for the year June 30, 2024. Although other lawfully availahle sources of fimding were available, 
thr Town did not budget any such transfers in the utility fimd for thr fiscal year. 

CAUSE: The Town did not budget transfers of lawfully available sources of funding to the utility 
fitnd as allowed by the bond ordinance. AS a result, the Town's computed debt service coverage 
ratio was less than the required 125%. 

EFFECT: The Town did not comply with the provisions of the rate covenant related to its various 
utility revenue bond issues. 

RECOMMENDATION. It is recommended that the Town include transfers of lawfully available 
sources of funding to the Utility Fund when preparing its operating budget each fiscal year. 

MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTION ACTION PLAN: The Town will include transfers of 
lawfully available sources of funding to the Utility Fund when preparing it; operating budget each 
fiscal year. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Summary Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Part II. Prior Year Findings 

A. Internal Control FindinE;s - 

2023-0111 Inadequate Segregation of Accounting Functions 

CONDITION: The Town did not have adequate segregation of functions within the accounting 
system. 

RECOMMENDATION: The Town should establish and monitor mitigating controls over 
functions that are not completely segegated. 

CURRENT STATUS: Unresolved. See finding 2024-001. 

2023-0II2 Reconciliation of Accounts 

CONDITION: The Town did not have adequate procedures in place to reconcile halanee sheet 
accounts to appropriate supportine documentation. 

RECOMMENDATION. The Town should establish policies and procedures to reconcile balance 
sheet accounts to appropnate supporting documentation on a monthly basis in order to identify 
errors in a timely manner. 

CURRENT STATUS: Unresolved. See finding 2024-002. 

2023-1103 Written Policies and Procedures 

CONDITION: The Town does not have written policies and procedures for budeeting, 
purchasing, disbursements, receipts. collections. payroll personnel. contracting, use of credit 
cards, travel and expense reimbursements, ethics, debt service, capital asset rnanagernent, and the 
safeguarding of traffic tickets. 

RECOMMENDATION: Management should adopt formal written policies and procedures for 
budgeting, purchasing, disbursements, receipts!collections, payroll. personnel, contracting, use of 
credit cards, travel and expense reimbursements, ethics, debt service, capital asset management, 
and the safeguarding of traffic tickets. 

CURRENT STATUS: Unresolved. See finding 2024-003. 
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TOWN OF SUNSET, LOUISIANA 

Summary Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
and Management's Corrective Action Plan (Contimied) 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 

B. Compliance Finding - 

2023-1104 Noncompliance with Budget Act 

CONDITION: The Town did not comply with the provisions of LSA-RS 39.1311(A )(1)8E(2) 
with respect to the General Fund. Total expenditures exceeded hudgeted expenditures in the 
General Fund hv 11% or $209.038. 

RECOMMENDATION: The Town should pthodically compare actual activity to budgeted 
amounts and adopt budgetary amendments as necessary to ensure compliance with state statutes. 

CURRENT STATUS: Resolved. 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT 
* A Professional Accounting Corporation ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Board of Alderman of the 
Town of Sunset 
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLNs) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for 
the fiscal period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. The Town of Sunset's management is responsible for 
those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

The Town of Sunset has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate 
to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas 
identified in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. Additionally, LLA has 
agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report 
may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of 
interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are 
responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

1) Written Policies and Procedures 

A. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they address each 
of the following categories and subcategories, if applicable, to public funds and the entity's operations: 

i. Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do not address the functions noted above. 

ii. Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) 
controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) documentation required to be 
maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do not address the functions noted above. 

iii. Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do not address the functions noted above. 
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iv. Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and 
procedures should mclude rnanagement's actions to determine the completeness of all collections 
for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g., periodic confirmation with outside parties, 
reconciliation to utihty billing after cutoff proeedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number 
sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation). 

if iliten policies and proceduirs were obtained and do not address• the iiinctions noted above. 

v. PayrolbPersonnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtirne worked, and (3) approl, al process for employee( s) 
rate of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

tfritwn policies and procedures were obtained and do not address the iiinctions noted above. 

vi. Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions. (3) legal review, (4) approval process. and (5) monitoring proeess. 

ifritten pohcies and proceduirs titi en? obtained and do not address the functions noted above. 

vii. Travel and Expense Reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers. 

Written policies and pmeeduirs were obtained and do not address the fiinctions noted above 

Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, purchase cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards 
are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements. (4) required 
apprmers of statements. and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g.. determining the reasonableness of 
fuel card purchases). 

Mitten policies and procedures were obtained ancl do not address the finictions noted above. 

ix. Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 42:1111-1121. 
(2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics 
violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate that all 
employees and officials were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy. 

ifritten pohcies and pmceduivs wen,  obtained mid do not address the _functions noted above 

x. Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure- EMMA reporting 
requirernents, (3) deht reserve requirements, and (4) deht service requirements 

Written pohcies and proceduirs were obtained and do not address the Innctions noted above. 

xi. Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) identification of 
critical data and frequency of data backups. (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location 
isolated from the network, (3) periodic testingsverification that backups can he restored, (4) use of 
antivirus software on all systems. (5) timely application of all mailable system and software 
patches. updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover 
operations after a critical event. 

1))-itten poheie.s and pmcedums mem obtained und do not address the functions noted above. 

xii. Prevention of Sexual Harassment. including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for ( 1) agency 
responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training. and (3) annual reporting. 

Mitten pohcies and piticeduirs wen' obtained and do not address the fiinctions noted above. 



2) Board or Finance Committee 

A. Ohtain and inspect the boardifinance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's 
enahling legislation, charter. bylaws, or equivalent document in effect dunng the fiscal period, and: 

i. Observe that the boardlinance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency 
in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent document. 

No exceptions were found as a result ()Phis procedure. 

ii. For those entities reporting on the gm ernmental accounting model, observe whether the minutes 
referenced or included nionthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, quarterly 
budget-to-actual comparisons, at a minimum, on all proprietary funds. and semi-annual budget-to-
actual comparisons, at a minimum, on all special revenue funds. Alternatively far those entities 
reporting on the not: for-profit accounting model, observe that the minutes rekienced or included 
financial actmty relating to public lands !f those public jands comprised more than 10% of the 
entity's collections during the fiscal perwd. 

The lawn's minutes did not reference or include month1v budget-to-actual onnparisons on the 
general fimd. quarterk budget-to-actual comparisons. at a minimum. on all pmprietary funds. and 
semi-annual budget-to-actual comparisons, at a minimum. on ull.spccial revenue Ands. 

For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned fund 
balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negatn e ending unassigned fund balance in 
the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period 
referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative unassigned fund balance in the 
general fund 

No exceptions were jinind us a irsult of this pmcedwr. 

iv. Observe whether the board:finance conunittee received written updates of the progress of resolving 
audit finding( s), according to management's corrective action plan at each meeting until the 
findings are considered fully resolved 

The boardfinanee committee received no written updates of the progress of re.solving audit 
findingt%), acconling to management's corrective action plan at each meeting until the findings are 
considemd fully resolved 

3) Bank Reconciliation% 

A. Obtain a listing of entity hank accounts for the fiscal period from manamement and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating 
account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all 
accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period. ohtain and inspect the 
corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each selected account, and observe that: 

Obtained a listing of entay hank accounts jar th e fiscal period and management's representation that 
the listing is complete. 

i. Bank reconciliations include e‘idence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related 
statement closine date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged); 

No exceptions were finind as a result af this procedure. 

ii. Bank reconciliations include written evidence that a member of management or a hoard member 
who does not handle cash, post ledgers. or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation 



within I month of the date the reconciliation was prepared (e.2., initialed and dated or zlcctronicaIly 
logged), and 

Bank reconciliations selected fin• testing dui not include written evidence thin a member of 
management or u hoard member who does not handle cash. post ledgers. or issue checks hus 
reviewed each bank reconcihatwn within 1 month of the dute the reconcihation wus prepared. 

Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

For 4 out of the 5 hank reconciliations selected jiir testing, there was no documentation rflecting 
if management has irsearched reconciling items that have been outstanding ffir more than 12 
months from the statement closing daw. 

4) ('ollections (excluding electronic funds transfers) 

A. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for casbchecks. money orders (cash) 
are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit 
sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

Obtained a listing qf deposit sites lbr theliscal period and management representation that the listing 
is complete. 

B. For each deposit site selected, obtain a hsting of collection locations and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e., 5 
collection locations for 5 deposit sites). obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if no writ-ten policies or procedures, inquire of employees ahout their job duties) 
at each collection location. and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection 
location such that-

 

i. Employees responsihle for cash collections do not share cash drawers.registers; 

Observed that employes responsible fbr cash collections also share the same cash 
drawers/irgisters. 

ii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsihle for preparing:making bank 
deposits. unless another employeesofficial is responsible for reconciling collection documentation 
(e.g., pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit; 

ObseiTed that employes ivsponsiblefiyr collectm,g cash are not irsponsible Jiff preparin,giniaking 
hank deposits 

iii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for posting collection entries 
to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee:official is responsible tbr 
reconcilin2 ledger postin2s to each other and to the deposit: and 

Observed that employees responsible lbr collecting cash arc not responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledger or subsithwy ledgers. 

iv. The employee( s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and, or subsidiary 
ledgers, hy revenue source andbr custodial fund additions, is (are) not also responsible for 
collecting cash, unless another employee.ofticial verifies the reconciliation. 

Observed that employees tesponsible Pr reconciling cash collections to the general ledger andior 
sub.sidituy ledgers, by irvenue .smure andfor custodial .fund additions, are not responsible Pr 
collecting cash 
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C. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance pohcy for theft covering all employees who 
have access to cash. Observe that the bond or insurance policy for theft was in force dunng the fiscal 
period. 

Obtained and roiewed a copy of the bond or insurance policy few-  MO covering all employees who 
hove access to cash, noting no eyceptions. 

I). Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for Bank Reconciliations 
procedure 3A (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates 
randomlv selected and randomly sdect a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). 
.41ternatively. the pructitunler may use a source document other than bank .snitements when sekcting 
the deposit dates fin-  testing. such as a cush collection log, doily trvenue report, receipt book etc. 
Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and 

i. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

No exceptions were limpid us a irsult qf the procedure 

ii. Trace sequentially pre-numhered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

No exceptions were found as a irsult of this procedure. 

iii. Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement 

No exceptions were finind a.s a result qf this pmeeduir. 

iv. Observe the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location (within 
one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit is less 
than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer). 

No exception.v were finind us a irsult qf this pmeedure. 

v. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger 

Arn exceptions were finmd us a irsult qf this pmeedure. 

5) Non-Paroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases, travel reimbursements, and petty cash 
purchases) 

A. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for thr fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listine is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

Obtained u listirrg on' locutions that process payments jiir the fiscal period and management's 
representation thut the listing is complete. 

B. For each location selected under procedure #5A above, obtain a listing of those employees involved 
with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of employees ahout 
their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

i. At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and 
placing an order or making the purchase; 

Observed that there are not ut least twi) employee.s involved in initiating u purchase request. 
appmving a puirhase. and placing an mderinaking the purchase 

ii. At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors; 
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Observed that at least two employee.s are not involved in pincessmg and approving payments to 
vendors. 

iii. The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from addingsmod4init vendor 
files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files, 

Observed that the employee tvsponsible finr processing paynwnts r.s llol Invhibited from 
addinglmodiftmg vendor.filas. 

iv. Either the employee 'official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or give, the signed 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments: and 

Obsemed that the employee responsible .fiir processing papnents is also wsponsiblej0r 
the piyments. 

v. Only employees;otlicials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement (release) 
of funds, whether through automated clearinghouse (ACM electronic funds transfer (EFT). wire 
transfer, or some other electronic means. 

Observed that only employes.Vicials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic 
disbursement (release) offimds. whether thmugh automated clearinghouse (ACM electronic funds 
transfer (EFT), wrre transfer or .some other electmnic means. 

C. For each location selected under procedure #5A above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obta in management's 
representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, 
obtain supporting docutnentation for each transaction, and: 

i. Observe whether the disbursement, whether by paper or electronic means, matched the related 
original itemized invoice and supporting documentation indicates that deliverables included on the 
invoice were received by the entity: and 

No exceptions were pund as a result of this procedwv. 

ii. Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g.. initiardate, dectronic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under procedure #5B above, as applicable. 

Disbursements selected fbr te.sting did nor include evitknce segregation qfditues tested tinder 
procedwr #5B above 

D. Using the entity's main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliations procedure 
#3A, randomly select 5 non-pa),Toll-related electronic disbursements (or all electronic disbursements if 
less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was (a) approved by only those persons 
authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the entity's policy, and lb) approved by the required 
number of authorized signers per the entity's. policy. Note: If no electronic payments were made fivm 
the main operating account during the month selected the practitioner should select an alternanve 
month andfor account fin• testing that does include demonic disbursements. 

2 qf the 5 non-payroll-related &ermine disbursements selected firr te.sung were approved by persons 
not authonzed to disburse funds and were not approved by the required number of authorized signers. 
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6) Credit CardvDebit Cards/Fuel Cards/Purehase Cards (Cards) 

A. Ohtain frorn management a listing of all active credit cards, hank dehit cards, fttel cards, and purchase 
cards (cards) for the fiscal penod, including thr card mmthers and the names of the persons who 
maintained possession of the cards. Obtain manaeement's representation that the listing is complete. 

Obtained a listing of all active credit cards. hank debit cards, fuel cards, and purchase cards firr the 
fiscal period and management's rrpresentation that the listing is complete. 

B. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that were 
used durint: the fiscal period. Randomlv select one monthly statement or combined statement for each 
card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, 
and 

i. Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation onginal receipts for credit:debit card purchases, exception reports 
for excessive fttel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or electronically approved), 
by someone other than the authorized card holder (those instances requiring such approval that may 
constrain the legal authority of certain public officials, such as the mayor of a Lawrason Act 
municipality. should not be reported): and 

The monthly statements selected firr testing werw not reviewed or appmved, in writing, by someone 
other Ana the authorized card holder 

ii. Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

No exceptions were Pund as a irsult of this pitreedure. 

. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under procedure above, excludino, 
fuel cards. randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement. and 
ohtain supportmg documentation for the transactions (e.g., each card should have 1° transactions 
suhject to inspection). For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an original itemized 
receipt that identities precisely what was purchased. (2) written documentation of the businesspublic 
purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only) For 
missing receipts, thr practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and observe whether 
management had a compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt 
statement" that is suhject to increased scrutiny. 

For 2 out of the 4 transactions selected f0r testing. the transactions were not supported hr an original 
itemized receipt rhat ident?fies precisely what was purchased and did not contain written documentation 
qf the busi)less/pubhc purpose. 

7) Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements-  (excluding card transactions) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-rdated expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly 
select 5 reimbursements and obtain the related expense reimbursement forms prepaid expense 
documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of 
the 5 reimbursements selected: 

Obtained u listing oJ'ull trawl uncl travel-related expense reimhumements during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete 
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i. If reimbursed using a per diem, observe the approved reimbursement rate is no more than those 
rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration 
(www.gsa.gov); 

No exceptions were found as a result of this procedure. 

ii. If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased; 

No exceptions were found as a result of this procedure. 

iii. Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose 
(for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals 
participating) and other documentation required by Written Policies and Procedures procedure 
#1A(vii); and 

No exceptions were found as a result of this procedure. 

iv. Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than 
the person receiving the reimbursement. 

No exceptions were found as a result of this procedure. 

8) Contracts 
The Town of Sunset, Louisiana, did not have any agreements/contracts for professional services, 
materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal 
period. Therefore, the attributes below are not applicable. 
A. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and 

supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. 
Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. 
Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all 
contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and: 

i. Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., 
solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law; 

ii. Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy or 
law (e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter); 

111. If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe that the original contract terms provided 
for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the contract terms 
(e.g., if approval is required for any amendment, the documented approval); and 

iv. Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice and related 
payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

9) Payroll and Personnel 

A. Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or officials, obtain related paid salaries and personnel 
files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

Obtained a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Obtained related paid salaries and personnel files and 
agreed to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files, noting no exceptions. 
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B. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials selected 
under procedure #9A above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay penod, and 

i. Observe that all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., 
vacation, sick, compensatory): 

No exceptions were found us a mull (Obis procedure. 

Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees or 
officials: 

• exception.v were finind us u insult of this pmeedure. 

iii. Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is retlected in the entity's cumulative 
leave records; and 

No exceptions were found as a trsult of this procedum. 

Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agrees to the authorized salarypay rate found 
within the personnel file. 

No exceptions were finind as a irsult of this proceduir. 

C. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees or 
officials and obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in manaeement's termination 
payment calculations and the entity's policy on termination payments. Agree the hours to the 
employee's or official's cumulative leave records, agree the pay rates to the employee's or official's 
authorized pay rates in the employee's or official's persoimel tiles, and agree the termination payment 
to entity policy. 

No exceptions were finind as a result of this procedwr. 

D. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party payroll related 
amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contnbutions. health insurance premiums, garnishments, 
workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms have been filed, by 
required deadlines. 

No exceptions ivere found as a midi (f this procedurv. 

10) Ethics 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees:officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure tOA obtain 
ethics documentation from management. and 

i. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates that each employee:official completed one hour 
of ethics training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:1170; and 

No exceptions weir Jaw& as u mall or this prucedure. 

ii. Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates that each employer and 
official were notitied of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the tiscal period, as 
applicable. 

No evceptions were jOund as a msult this procedurr. 

B. Inquire and'or observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required by R.S. 
42:1170. 
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No exceptions were finind as a result this procedwr. 

11) Debt Service 

A. Obtain a hsting of bonds;notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal penod and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all deht instrurnents on the listing, 
ohtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval was ohtained tor 
each debt instrurnent issued as required by Article VII, Section 8 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

Ai, exceptions were found us a result qf this procedure. 

B. Obtain a listing of bonds:notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal penod and rnanagement's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond;note, inspect debt covenants, 
ohtain supporting documentation for the reserve halance and payments. and agree actual reserve 
balance and payments to those required hy debt covenants (including contingency funds, short-lived 
asset funds. or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

No exceptions were found as a result this procedure. 

12) Fraud Notice 

A. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
inanagement's representation that the listine is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation. and observe that the entity reported the rnisappropnation(s) to the 
leeislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled as required by 
R.S. 14.513. 

Per thseusyian wrth management. them were no misuppropnations c f public .firnds and assets during 
the fiscal period 

B. Observe the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

No exceptions were found as a result this procedure. 

13) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity 

A. Perform the following procedures. 

i. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent docurnentation that it has backed up its critical data (if 
no written documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible for backing up critical data) and 
observe evidence that such backup Ca) occurred within the past week {b) was not stored on the 
governrnent's local server or network, and {c) was encrypted. 

Ita,perfiirmed the procethwe and discussed the results it ith managemort. 

ii. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has tested/verified that its backups 
can be restored (if there is no written docurnentation. then inquire of personnel responsible for 
testingiverifying hackup restoration) and observe evidence that the testiverification was 
successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

perfbrmed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 
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iii. Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations, and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly sdect 5 computers and 
observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current and active 
antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system software in use are 
currently supported by the vendor. 

We perfinmed the pmcedwe and discussed the tesults wnh management 

B. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employees if less than 5) using the list of 
terminated employees obtained in Payroll and Personnel procedures ft9C. Observe evidence that the 
selected terminated employees have been removed or disabled from the network. 

No exceptions were finind as a test& af this procedure. 

C. Using the 5 randomly selected employees;officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A, ohtain 
cybersecurity training documentation from management. and observe that the documentation 
demonstrates that the following employees/officials with access to the agency's inforniation technology 
assets have completed cybersecurity training as required by R.S. 42.1267. The requirements are as 
follows: 

• Hired before June 9, 2020 - completed the training: and 
• Hired on or after June 9, 2020 - completed the training within 30 days of initial service or 

employment. 

No e.xceptions were found as a tesult al this procedure. 

14) Prevention of Sexual Harassment 

A. Using the 5 randomlv selected employees:officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A. obtain 
sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observe that the documentation 
demonstrates each employee. official completed at least one hour of sexual harassment training dunng 
the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:343. 

No exceptions were found as a result al this procedutr. 

B. Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its website 
tor in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entitv does not have a website). 

No exceptions were finmd as a test& af this procedure. 

C. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the report 
was dated on or before February 1, and ohserve that the report includes the applicable requirements of 
R.S. 42.344: 

i. Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements; 

ii. Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the nency: 

Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred: 

iv. Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or corrective 
action; and 
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v. Aniount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

No exceptions were Pima' as a irsult of this pmeedure. 

Management's Response 

Management of the Town of Sunset concurs with the exceptions and are working to address the 

deficiencies identified. 

We were engaged by the Town of Sunset to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and 
conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the Amencan Institute of 
Certitied Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standaids. We were not 
engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the 
expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those CC areas identified in the SAUPs. 
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion Had we performed additional procedures, 
other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the Town of Sunset and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures 
engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C:C areas identified 
in the SAUPs. and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. 
Accordingly. this report is not suitahle for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24.513. this 
report is distnbuted by the LLA as a public document. 

Kolder, Maven & Company, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Ville Platte, Louisiana 
November 7, 2024 
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